
Page 1 of 3 

   

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2016  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

16C‐0039. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

16C‐0040.  Roll Call 

16C‐0041.  Establishment of Quorum 
16C‐0042.  Pledge of Allegiance 
16C‐0043.  Reports of Standing Committees 
16C‐0044.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0045. 
  
Public Hearing on the First Amendment to the Annexation Agreement, Dated 
January 27, 2010, Between the City of Galena and Joe Borsdorf, James 
Sullivan, Alexander Phillips, James Richards, Jo Ann Richards, or their 
Grantees, Heirs, Successors or Assigns, for a 33‐acre Subdivision at the 
Intersection of US Route 20 and Power House Hill Road in Galena 

4‐21 

 
16C‐0046. 

 
Public Hearing on the Prelimary Plat for the Gateway Park Subdivision 
(formerly known as the Sullivan Subdivision) 

22‐26 

 
 

Page 1 of 83



Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐03 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0047. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of January 25, 
2016 

27‐30  

 
16C‐0048. 

 
Approval of an Agreement with Jo Daviess Country Fair Charities, Inc. for 
Galena Country Fair, October 6‐9, 2016 in Grant Park 

31‐34 

 
16C‐0049. 

 
Approval of a Request by Tristate Historical Presentations to Conduct the 
Third Annual Grant’s Home Front Event in Depot Park, April 22‐24, 2016 

35 

 
16C‐0050. 

 
Approval of 2016 Swimming Pool Wages, Rates, and Hours of Operation 

36‐40 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0051. 
 

Water and Sewer Operations and Maintenance Report from American Water 
 
‐‐ 

 
16C‐0052. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Amendment to 
an Annexation Agreement Previously Entered Into for a 33‐acre Subdivision 
at the Intersection of US Route 20 and Power House Hill Road in Galena  

 
4‐21 

 
16C‐0053. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Prelimary Plat for the Gateway Park 
Subdivision (formerly known as the Sullivan Subdivision) 

 
22‐26 

 
16C‐0054. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Letter of Intent Regarding a Unified 
Destination Marketing Organization for Jo Daviess County 

 
41 

 
16C‐0055. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Renewal of Contract with VisitGalena.org 
for Destination Marketing Services 

 
42‐57 

 
16C‐0056. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by Prairie Ridge of Galena for a 
Building Permit Fee Reduction for the Planned Senior Housing Project 

 
58‐59 

 
16C‐0057. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on 5‐year Street Program for the Capital 
Improvement Plan 

 
60‐66 

Page 2 of 83



Page 3 of 3 

 
NEW BUSINESS (Continued)  

 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. February 10  6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Deer Committee   Wed. February 17   6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. February 22  6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Turner Hall Committee  Thurs. March 3  8:30 A.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. March 3  6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, February 4, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0058. 
 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the First Addendum to the Mutual 
Aid Box Alarm System Master Agreement 

 
67‐77 

 
16C‐0059. 

 
Warrants  

 78‐83 

 
16C‐0060. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
16C‐0061. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
16C‐0062. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

 
16C‐0063. 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 3 of 83



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    February 2, 2016 

RE:    Sullivan Annexation Agreement   
 
 
Jim Sullivan and Alex Phillips are the current owners of the 33‐acre commercial subdivision at the 
intersection of US Highway 20 and Powder House Hill Road.  The subdivision attaches to Gateway 
Park.  The owners are proposing changes to the annexation agreement that was entered into with 
the City in 2010.  As a separate agenda item, the owners are seeking approval of the plat of 
subdivision for the property.  The subdivision process is explained in a memorandum from Zoning 
Administrator, Matt Oldenburg. 
 
I am attaching the proposed First Amendment to the Annexation Agreement prepared by the 
attorney for the owners, Julie Mark‐Hellman.  The substantive changes relate primarily to the 
water, sewer, and roadways for the property.  The owners propose to use private septic systems 
and wells, with the exception of Lot 1 adjacent to US Highway 20.  This lot would be required to 
connect to the public water supply.  The owners also propose to construct a private driveway, 
instead of a public street, on the “Wild Indigo Lane” cul‐de‐sac.   
 
A public hearing on the proposed changes will be conducted at the beginning of the council 
meeting.  I expect the owners to be present and/or represented at the meeting to explain the 
proposal and answer questions.     
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
   

 
 
  

 

Page 4 of 83



FIRST    
AMENDMENT TO 
ANNEXATION  
AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  This  First  Amendment  to  Annexation  Agreement  is  made  to  Annexation 

Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated January 27, 2010 and recorded by the Jo Daviess 

County Recorder, State of Illinois, on May 31, 2011, as Document No. 363027, between 

the City of Galena, a municipal corporation of Jo Daviess County, Illinois (the “City”) and 

Joe  Borsdorf,  James  Sullivan,  Alexander  Phillips,  James  Richards,  Jo  Ann  Richards,  or 

their grantees, heirs, successors or assigns (the “Owners”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

  WHEREAS, Owners have  requested  changes  to  the Agreement as  the  result of 

changing market conditions and the impracticality and cost implications of carrying out 

some of the terms of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties seek to work cooperatively toward a more feasible and 

realistic development plan which will benefit both parties.  This First Amendment is 

necessary for both parties to accomplish the goals of developing the subject property in 

accordance with the objectives and capabilities of the parties; and 

 

Page 5 of 83



  WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted on February 8, 2016 giving the public 

and the Galena City Council the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed 

First Amendment to the Agreement; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council subsequently voted on the ___ day of 

_______________, 2016, by a vote of __ to __, to approve changes to the Agreement. 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements 

between the parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree 

as follows: 

 

1. In the first paragraph, the following deletions shall be made:  

  

THIS AGREEMENT is made on or as of the 27th day of January, 2010, by 

and between the CITY OF GALENA, an Illinois Municipal Corporation (the 

“City”) and Joe Borsdorf, James Sullivan and, Alexander Phillips, James 

Richards, Jo Ann Richards, or their grantees, heirs, successors or assigns, 

(the “Current Owners””).  It is intended by the Current Owners, that this 

Amended Agreement shall be binding on the future Owners of the Lots.  

The financial responsibility to comply with this Amended Agreement shall 

rest with the purchasers of the individual lots, and not with the Current 

Owners.  

 

2. Strike Paragraph D in the Recitals, in its entirety as follows: 

 

Owners propose to enter into an annexation agreement with the City for 

the Property and rezone the Property to the Planned Unit Development 

District pursuant to authority granted by the City of Galena Zoning Board 

of Appeals and the Galena City Council.   

Page 6 of 83



 

3. The following deletions shall be made in Article II, Paragraph 2.1.4: 

 

 “Owners” means Joe Borsdorf, James Sullivan, Alexander Phillips, James 

Richards, and Jo Ann Richards or their grantees, heirs, successors or 

assigns. 

 

4. Article III, Paragraph 3.1 shall be amended as follows: 

 

Acknowledgment by Parties. The parties agree and acknowledge the 

subject property was annexed into the City on May 9, 2013.  The Owners 

are submitting, along with this First Amendment, an application for a 

preliminary and final Plat of Subdivision.   mission of Petition to Annex. 

Within thirty (30) days after the Property becomes contiguous to the 

corporate limits of the City, Owners shall submit or cause to be submitted 

a legally sufficient petition for the annexation of the Property to the City.  

Simultaneously with the submission of such petition for annexation, the 

Owners shall at their sole cost and expense provide the City an 

annexation plat depicting the relationship of the boundaries of the 

Property prior to its annexation to the then‐existing corporate limits of 

the City.   

 

5. Article III, Paragraph 3.2 shall be deleted in its entirety as follows: 

 

Adoption of Ordinances Addressing Zoning Matters. No later than thirty 

(30) days after the adoption of this Agreement, the City shall, subject to 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement, do all things necessary or 

appropriate to cause the City to adopt an ordinance for the purpose of 

establishing the zoning of the Property and parts thereof, being Planned 

Page 7 of 83



Unit Development District zoning with the underlying default district for 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 as Planned Commercial.   

 

6. Article III, Paragraph 3.3 shall be deleted in its entirety as follows: 
 

Annexation of the Property. Within sixty (60) days after receipt of the 

Petition for Annexation of the Property as provided in Section 3.1 of this 

Agreement, the City shall, subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, do all things necessary or appropriate to cause the Property 

to be annexed to the City and to comply with the provisions of this 

Agreement.  In particular and without limitation, the City shall pass and 

approve an ordinance annexing the Property to the City, and prepare and 

serve any notices as may be required for any township road district, fire 

protection district or library district, as appropriate.  The City shall record 

as necessary the ordinance annexing the Property and record or file any 

other documents as may be necessary to effectuate the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

7. Article III, Paragraph 3.4 shall be deleted in its entirety as follows: 
 

Use of the Property Prior to Annexation. Until the City annexes the 

Property as provided in Section 3.3 of this Agreement, the City and 

Owners agree that the Property may be developed in accordance with 

and consistent with the terms of this Agreement and with all ordinances 

of the City regarding such development in place at the time of the 

execution of this Agreement. 

Page 8 of 83



 

8. Article IV, Paragraph 4.1 shall be amended as follows” 

 

Zoning.  The parties acknowledge that the City has taken action by 

adopting an ordinance City shall enact such ordinances, adopt such 

resolutions and take such other actions as are necessary to zone the 

Property with a Planned Unit Development District zoning with the 

underlying default district for Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 as Planned 

Commercial and shall approve approved the Preliminary Planned Unit 

Development Plan.   

 

9. Article IV, Paragraph 4.6 shall be amended as follows: 

 

Sidewalks and other infrastructure.  Sidewalks shall be required within 

the Property in accordance with the Galena Subdivision Ordinance along 

any new roadway planned to be dedicated to the City for ownership and 

maintenance.  Sidewalks constructed for dedication to the City shall be 

in compliance as set forth in the City of Galena Subdivision Ordinance. 

Street lighting, signs, and other infrastructure in the development 

planned to be dedicated to the City for ownership and maintenance 

shall all be in compliance with the City of Galena Subdivision Ordinance 

and City of Galena Zoning Ordinance. Curb and gutter shall be required 

on any roadway planned to be dedicated to the City for ownership and 

maintenance and must be installed consistent with Illinois Department of 

Transportation standard specifications. 

Page 9 of 83



 

10. Article VI, Paragraph 6.1 shall be amended as follows: 

 

The City represents and warrants that it owns, operates and maintains a 

sanitary sewage collection, treatment and disposal system within its 

borders, but not contiguous to or abutting the Property. All buildings on 

the property that are required by building code to have sanitary sewer 

facilities shall be connected to the public sewer system and shall not be 

permitted to utilize septic treatment or other alternative treatment or 

containment systems. Lots 1, 2,3,4,5 and 6 shall be allowed to be 

serviced by private sewer systems. The Owners agree that Chapter 

51.005 of the Galena Code of Ordinances shall dictate if/when the 

Owners must connect to the City sanitary sewer.  The relevant 

ordinance is below:  

51.005 DUTY OF OWNER OR OCCUPANT TO CONNECT WATER AND 

SEWER LINES.  

Subject to § 51.025, it shall be the duty of the owner, occupant or party 

or parties in possession of any house, structure, factory, industrial or 

commercial establishment or any building of any other character 

located on property abutting and contiguous and within 300 feet of the 

public waterworks and sewerage system, to cause such house, 

structure, factory, industrial or commercial establishment or any 

building of any other character to be connected with the waterworks 

and sewerage system within one year from the date that water or 

sewer facilities become abutting and contiguous to such property. In 

turning water on or off, the city shall not be responsible for any damage 

whatsoever, whether occurring by reason of improper fixtures, open or 

improper connections, or for any other reasons or by any other causes. 

Page 10 of 83



In the event that it is economically feasible for the Owners to connect to 

city sewer services, then the Owners shall provide, at the sole cost and 

expense of the Owners, a study by a professional engineer, approved by 

the City prior to the commencement of work to perform the study, which 

clearly demonstrates the capacity of the existing sanitary system to serve 

the expected needs of Owners, including all necessary lift stations and 

back‐up power supplies.  Said study shall also identify and design 

requirements for the installation of all connecting mains, etc. to the 

existing City sewer system and any required system of mains within the 

Property for a fully functioning system to serve the sanitation sewer 

needs of the Property as developed.  Any necessary upgrades of the 

system identified by said engineering study, including any infrastructure 

to be located outside of the Property, and including but not limited to, 

pipes, valves, lift stations, pumps, treatment facilities, SCADA, etc., shall 

be completed at the sole cost and expense of Owners prior to the City 

authorizing the Owners to connect to the system.  Prior to the issuance of 

any construction or other permits related to any development of the 

Property, an Illinois Environmental Protection Agency permit must be 

obtained at the sole cost and expense of the Owners.  The City does not 

warrant, guarantee or agree that the sanitary sewer system owned and 

operated by the City has sufficient capacity or functionality to serve the 

Property or any development thereof.   Furthermore, the City shall not 

reserve any sewerage capacity for the Property until such time that the 

City issues construction permits for the construction of the 

 

11. Article VI, paragraph 6.2 shall be amended as follows: 

  

In the event it is economically feasible for the Owners to connect to city 

sewer services, subject to the limitations set forth herein, the Owners shall 

Page 11 of 83



have the right to connect to and use such sanitary sewer system and 

mains. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, Owners shall pay to 

the City all permit, tap‐on and inspection fees based on the fee schedule in 

place at the time of permit application. 

 

12.  Article VI, paragraph 6.3 shall be amended as follows:   

 

The Owners shall be responsible for obtaining any and all permissions, 

easements, or property necessary to install the sanitary sewer system 

needed to serve the Property.  The City does not guarantee sufficient 

public right‐of‐way or public property to install sanitary sewer service 

outside of the Property.  Any and all costs incurred by the City in assisting 

Owners in obtaining permits, easements, completion of the engineering 

study and any other assistance including, but not limited to City staff 

time, additional engineering and other professional costs as well as 

reasonable attorney fees, all as reasonably identified by the City, shall be 

reimbursed in full to the City by Owners prior to authorization to connect 

either to the existing sewer system or any extension or expansion thereof 

accomplished by Owners or the City pursuant to the terms of this 

Agreement.  City shall without cost to the City and to the extent 

reasonably possible, assist Owners/Developers in procuring easements or 

acquiring property interests necessary to extend the sanitary sewer from 

its current terminus to the boundary of the Property in order to effect 

the provision of sanitary service to the Property.  All such work will be 

done in accordance with plans provided in said engineering study and 

approved by the City Engineer. 

The Owners shall be responsible for obtaining any and all permissions, 

easements, or property necessary to install the sanitary sewer system 

needed to serve the Property. The City does not guarantee sufficient 

Page 12 of 83



public right‐of‐way or public property to install sanitary sewer service 

outside of the Property. Before the City incurs any costs, the City shall 

communicate with the Owners and discuss the potential work to be 

performed by the City (or on behalf of the City) and the potential costs. 

Any and all costs incurred by the City in assisting the Owners in 

obtaining permits, easements, completion of the engineering study and 

any other assistance including, but not limited to City staff time, 

additional engineering and other professional costs as well as 

reasonable attorney fees, all as reasonably identified by the City, shall 

be reimbursed in full to the City by the Owners prior to authorization to 

connect either to the existing sewer system or any extension or 

expansion thereof accomplished by Owners or the City pursuant to the 

terms of this Agreement. City shall without cost to the City and to the 

extent reasonably possible, assist Owners in procuring easements or 

acquiring property interests necessary to extend the sanitary sewer 

from its current terminus to the boundary of the Property in order to 

effect the provision of sanitary service to the Property. All such work 

will be done in accordance with plans provided in said engineering study 

and approved by the City Engineer. 

 

12. Article VII, Paragraph 7.1 shall be amended as follows: 
 

The City represents and warrants that it owns, operates and maintains a 

potable water supply and distribution system within its borders. A Any 

buildings located on Lot 1 only, on the property that are required by 

building code to have potable water service shall be connected to the public 

water system and shall not be permitted to private wells or other private 

water systems. The Owners of Lots 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 shall be allowed to 

service any buildings located on those lots with a private water system.  If 

in the future, it becomes economically feasible for the Owner(s)  of Lots 2, 

Page 13 of 83



3, 4, 5 and/or 6 to connect to City potable water system, and the system 

has the capacity to service the lot(s), the Owner would connect to the City 

water main along Highway 20, unless there is an alternative which is more 

cost‐efficient than the Highway 20 option.  

Owners provide, at the sole cost and expense of Owners, a study by a 

professional engineer, approved by the City prior to the commencement of 

work to perform the study, which clearly demonstrates the capacity and 

pressure of the existing potable water system to serve the expected needs 

of Owners, including all booster pumps, wells and storage. Said study shall 

also identify and design requirements for the installation of all connecting 

mains, etc. to the existing City potable water system and any required 

system of mains within the Property for a fully functioning system to serve 

the potable water needs of the Property as developed. Any necessary 

upgrades of the system identified by said engineering study, including any 

infrastructure to be located outside of the Property, and including but not 

limited to any pipes, valves, hydrants, pressure stations, towers, public wells, 

SCADA, ect., shall be completed at the sole cost and expense of the Owners 

prior to the City authorizing the Owners to connect to the system. Prior to 

the issuance of any construction or other permits related to any phase of the 

development of the Property, an Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

permit must be obtained at the sole cost and expense of the Owners. The 

City does not warrant, guarantee or agree that the potable water system 

owned and operated by the City has sufficient capacity or functionality to 

serve the Property or any development thereof. Furthermore, the City shall 

not reserve any potable water capacity for the Property until such time that 

the City issues construction permits for the construction of the water sewer 

system for the Property in accordance with this paragraph. 

Page 14 of 83



 

13. Article VII, Paragraph 7.2 shall be amended as follows: 

 

If in the future, it becomes economically feasible for the Owners of Lots 2, 3, 

4, 5 and 6 to connect to the city’s potable water system, then subject to the 

limitations set forth herein, the Owners shall have the right to connect to 

and use such potable water supply system.   

Subject to the limitations set forth herein, the Owners shall have the right to 

connect to and use such potable water supply system.  Prior to the issuance 

of any building permits, Owners shall pay to the City all permit, tap‐on and 

inspection fees based on the fee schedule in place at the time of permit 

application.  Should the property not be annexed at the time of permit 

application, Owners shall be subject to a fifty percent (50%) surcharge or 

additional fees as set forth in City Code of Ordinances Section 51.008 for 

usage that may be applied to properties outside of the municipal limits over 

and above those applied to properties within the City limits. 

 

14. Article VII, Paragraph 7.3 shall be deleted as follows: 

 

The Owners shall be responsible for obtaining any and all permissions, 

easements, or property necessary to install the potable water system 

needed to serve the Property.  The City does not guarantee sufficient public 

right‐of‐way or public property to install water service outside of the 

Property.  Any and all costs incurred by the City in assisting Owners in 

obtaining permits, easements, completion of the engineering study and any 

other assistance including, but not limited to City staff time, additional 

engineering and other professional costs as well as reasonable attorney fees, 

all as reasonably identified by the City, shall be reimbursed in full to the City 

by Owners prior to authorization to connect either to the existing potable 

Page 15 of 83



water system or any extension or expansion thereof accomplished by 

Owners or the City pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  Such action to 

complete such extension of the potable water main or mains shall be taken 

no later than the date water service is required for occupancy of the 

improvements to be serviced by said water main extension and constructed 

on the Property.  City shall, without cost to the City and to the extent 

reasonably possible, assist Owners in procuring easements or acquiring 

property interests necessary to extend the potable water from its current 

terminus to the boundary of the Property in order to effect the provision of 

potable water service to the Property.  All such work will be done in 

accordance with plans provided in said engineering study and approved by 

the City Engineer.  Water within the Property shall be extended only with 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency approval and only pursuant to 

permits from the City. 

 

15. Article IX, Paragraph 9.1 shall be amended as follows: 

 

The parties agree that the cul‐de‐sac as shown on the PUD concept shall 

remain a private driveway.  All roadways servicing any of the lots shall 

remain private and not subject to any city ordinances, specification and 

rules, regulation for street contrstuction. In the event the Owners desire 

any of the roadways be dedicated to the City for maintenance and 

ownership, the Owners agree that they must be constructed or brought up 

to City specifications.  All public infrastructure including, but not limited to, 

sanitary sewer system, potable water system, storm drainage system and 

streets shall be in compliance with installed on the Property consistent with 

all City ordinances, specifications, rules, regulations and the terms of this 

Agreement and same shall be subject to inspection and testing by 

appropriate officials of the City prior to the required dedication to and 

Page 16 of 83



acceptance of same by the City.  No occupancy permits for any commercial 

buildings in the development shall be issued by the City until all testing, 

inspection, dedication and acceptance by the City of any sanitary sewer, 

potable water and storm drainage system connections to existing City 

systems has been completed.  All costs and expenses of such testing and 

inspections to facilitate City approval and acceptance thereof shall be paid 

by Owners, including, but not limited to, the cost of a professional engineer 

at any time during the development of the Property as required by the City 

to inspect and test the sewer system, the potable water system, storm 

drainage system, roads/streets, street lights, curb and gutter systems, 

sidewalks, etc.  Prior to the City accepting dedication of any public 

infrastructure, said professional engineer shall provide the City with a report 

confirming all public infrastructure is installed in accordance with City 

approved plans and specifications.  Until dedication is accepted by the City, 

all roads/streets shall be reasonably maintained with normal road/street 

maintenance practices including, but not limited to, broken curb 

replacement, filling of cracks, damage repairs, etc.  The roads/streets shall 

be subject to inspection by the City at time of request for annexation as 

required in Article III hereof and annexation may be delayed until 

satisfaction of City objections by Owners to status of any roads/streets in 

the Property. 

 

16. Article IX, Paragraph 9.6 shall be deleted : 
 

Owners shall warrant all infrastructure accepted by the City for a period of 

one year commencing on the date of acceptance of the infrastructure by 

ordinance.  During the warranty period, Owners shall be responsible for all 

repairs necessary to maintain the public infrastructure free from defects or 

damage and in the same condition as at the date of acceptance. 

 

Page 17 of 83



17. Article IX, Paragraph 9.4 shall be deleted as follows: 

 

The connecting sewer and potable water systems from the existing City 

systems to the Property will be the only infrastructure accepted by the City 

prior to annexation. 

 

18. Article XI, Paragraph 11.1 shall be amended as follows: 

 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective 

grantees, heirs, successors and assigns for ten (10) twenty (20) years, 

commencing as of the date of this First Amendment. , and for such further 

term as may hereinafter be authorized by statute and by City ordinance. 

Failure of Owners to complete development of the Property during said ten 

(10) twenty (20) years shall either terminate the Annexation Agreement 

and any Amendments, or require Owners to renegotiate a new Agreement 

or another Amendment with the City.  prior to proceeding with any 

development of the Property thereafter. If any of the terms of this 

Agreement, or the annexation or zoning of the Property, is challenged in any 

court proceeding, then, to the extent permitted by law, the period of time 

during which such litigation is pending shall be included in calculating said 

ten (10) twenty (20) year period.  Should the property be annexed to the 

City at the expiration of the Term of this Agreement, the continuing validity 

of the zoning of the Property or any ordinance enacted by the City pursuant 

to this Agreement shall not be affected. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18 of 83



19. Article XII, Paragraph 12.1 shall be amended as follows: 

 

For infrastructure being constructed for dedication to the City for 

maintenance and ownership, a A bond shall be required prior to the issuance 

of any permits for the construction of infrastructure intended to be 

dedicated to the City upon completion.  To assure performance and 

completion of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all 

construction and other commitments made by Owners under the terms of 

this agreement, Owners shall provide to the City a Performance Bond either 

in cash or through a bank or an insurance carrier acceptable to the City in an 

amount to be determined by City to cover 100 percent of the cost of 

installing all public infrastructure.  Said bond shall be in the name of the City, 

due within sixty (60) days of approval of the Final Planned Unit Development 

Plan, and shall authorize the City to use said funds if Owner were to fail to 

perform under the terms of this Agreement.  Failure to perform shall be 

identified as follows: 

1. The infrastructure in any phase under construction is incomplete or 

deficient as required under this Agreement and the various applicable 

ordinances of the City; and 

2. The work on any permitted phase of said infrastructure has ceased for 

more than twelve (12) months or the work on any permitted phase of 

infrastructure is incomplete twenty‐four (24) months after the date the 

permit(s) was issued for said construction, and  

3. The City has provided sixty (60) days written notice to Owners/Developers 

of the existence of such stoppage or deficiencies, or 

4. At time of requested annexation under Article III hereof, 

Owner/Developer is unable or unwilling to complete the public 

infrastructure to satisfy City requirements or has failed to otherwise comply 

with the terms of this Agreement. 

Page 19 of 83



The City shall be authorized to collect and use said bond proceeds, at the 

sole discretion of the City, acting in good faith, unless Owners/Developers 

obtain an Order of a court of competent jurisdiction stopping such use. The 

language of and the provider of any such bond shall be agreed by the parties 

prior to the issuance of any construction permits by the City. 

 

20. Joe Borsdorf, Jim Richards, and Jo Ann Richards shall be deleted from the 

signature page. 

 

21. With the exception of the above amendments, the Agreement shall remain 

the same and shall be in full force and effect. 

 
22. The updated Agreement, including the changes listed herein, is attached 

hereto and made part hereof as Exhibit A. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment on this 

______ day of ________________, 2016 and, by so executing, each of the parties 

warrants that it possesses full right and authority to enter into this Amendment. 

 

 

            CITY OF GALENA, an Illinois 

            municipal corporation 

 

            By:  ________________________________ 

              Its Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

City Clerk 

Page 20 of 83



 

            OWNERS, 

 

            By:  ________________________________ 

              James Sullivan 

 

            By:  ________________________________ 

              Alexander Phillips  

 

 
 
Prepared by and Return To: 
Joseph Nack, City Attorney 
City of Galena 
101 Green Street, PO Box 310 
Galena, IL 61036 
 

Page 21 of 83



 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM: Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE: February 1, 2016 

1. RE: Cal. No. 16SUB-01, Applicant and Owners: James Sullivan and Alex Phillips, 9146 U.S. Route 20 West, 
Galena, IL 61036.  Location: Parcel: 06-500-163-15, a tract of land located in parts of the Northeast, Northwest and 
Southeast Quarters of Section 21, Township 28 North, Range 1 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, East Galena 
Township, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.  Common Address: 9146 U.S. Route 20 West, Galena, IL 61036.  Request 
to subdivide approximately 33.71 acres into 6 Lots. 
  
Summary: 

 
This property was approved as a preliminary plan for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) district with an 
underlying zoning district of Planned Commercial in 2010.  Around the same time, an annexation agreement 
was executed and later, in 2013, the tract of land was annexed into the City of Galena.  Although the PUD 
plan was approved and each proposed lot / pod of development was identified, the actual subdivision of the 
property into these lots was never executed.  Hence, the petitioners’ request before you now to divide the 
tract of land into lots that can be sold and developed. 
 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide the tract of land, comprised of approximately 33.71 acres, into six 
(6) lots.  The applicant is requesting approval of the Preliminary Plat for the subdivision to be known as 
“Gateway Park Subdivision”.  The proposed subdivision consists of Lot 1, containing 6.93 acres situated 
to the East; Lot 2, containing 2.65 acres situated to the East of the platted cul-de-sac; Lot 3, containing 1.75 
acres situated to the West of the platted cul-de-sac; Lot 4, containing 2.74 acres situated on the Northwest 
part of the cul-de-sac; Lot 5, containing 11.64 acres situated to the North; and Lot 6, containing 5.63 acres 
situated to the Northwest. 
 
Staff Comments: 
 
Staff Comments on the preliminary plat are included below: 

 
o All future development must demonstrate adequate storm water detention facilities or sustainable 

best management practices for storm water in their respective site plans. 
o Cul-de-sac must meet minimum engineering design requirements per the Subdivision Ordinance 

before the City accepts responsibility for maintenance and care of the right-of-way. 
o All proposed lots meet the minimum intensity and bulk standards required in the Planned 

Commercial / PUD district based on exhibits presented during the PUD request. 
o Future development on all lots shall require appropriate zoning and building review and permitting 

before any construction commences. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 83



 
ZBA Recommendation: 

 
No zoning action was needed for this request; instead, City Council will hold the public hearing and take 
possible action. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Based on Staff review of this request with respect to the Zoning Ordinance and the Subdivision Ordinance, 
Staff does recommend to the City Council approval of the preliminary plat.  If no changes are required after 
approval of preliminary plat, Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat as the final plat per 
§153.58. 
 

Page 23 of 83



Page 24 of 83



Page 25 of 83



Page 26 of 83



Regular Board Meeting  25 January 2016 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 25 JANUARY 2016 
 
 

16C-0019 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 25 January 2016.  
 
16C-0020– ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Westemeier and Renner 
 
16C-0021– ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-0022– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
16C-0023 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Unified Destination Marketing Committee – It is the committee’s goal to have the letter of 
intent stating it is the intent of the city and the county to come together as one unified destination 
marketing group prepared for the next council meeting.  The committee has tried to stick to the 
singular voice plan.  The county will present the letter of intent to the county board in February as 
well.   
 
16C-0024 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Gavin Doyle, 248 Council Fire Circle – Doyle urged the Council to vote favorably on the request 
by the Galena Elks Lodge for a parade permit for the St. Patrick’s Day Parade.  The parade will 
be held on Saturday, March 12, 2016.  The Elk’s are also requesting to do a children’s/adult fun 
run in the morning.  They anticipate some street closure for the run.     
 
Don Gereau, 219 N. High Street – Gereau read a prepared statement with regard to the Street 
Performers Ordinance and urged the council to embrace the intent of the street performance 
ordinance and encourage and support the street performers to continue to provide entertainment 
consistent with the overall public interest.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16-02 
 
16C-0025 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
JANUARY 11, 2015 
 
16C-0026 – APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF CRAIG ALBAUGH TO THE HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION COMMISSION FOR A TERM EXPIRING FEBRUARY 28, 2017 
 
16C-0027 – APPROVAL OF REQUEST BY BICYCLE ILLINOIS TO UTILIZE GRANT PARK AS 
A RESTOP FOR THE WILL TO BEN BICYCLE TOUR ON OCTOBER 10, 2016 
 
16C-0028 – APPROVAL OF MOTOR FUEL TAX (MFT) SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION 
 
16C-0029 – APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT FOR DRYWALL SERVICES AT THE FIRE 
TRAINING STORAGE BUILDING 
 
16C-0030 – ACCEPTANCE OF DECEMBER 2015 FINANCIAL REPORT 

Page 27 of 83



Regular Board Meeting  25 January 2016 

 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve Consent Agenda CA16-02 as presented.       
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
15C-0449 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CHAPTER 110.39 “STREET PERFORMERS” OF THE GALENA CODE OF 
ORDINANCES 
 
Motion: Hahn moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve an ordinance amending Chapter 
110.39 “Street Performers” of the Galena Code of Ordinances, 15C-0449.    
 
Discussion:  Fach voiced concern with the use of signs and who would approve/monitor them.  
He preferred no signs be allowed.   
 
Westemeier noted the ordinance says that signs must be approved by the City.  If signs aren’t 
placed appropriately, the Police Department will have to enforce it.   
 
Fach feels if a sign is going to be grandfathered in then everyone else should be allowed to have 
a sign that same size.   
 
Renner feels a good performer doesn’t need a sign.  We have problems in the downtown with 
signage now.  He is concerned with adding more to it.  He agrees no signs should be allowed.  
He recommended allowing the tarot ladies to have their sign for one more year and then no more.  
He feels it is senseless to add any more problems to the Zoning Administrator.  Bernstein agreed.   
 
Lincoln stated he personally doesn’t like the signs in the street.  They should either be attached to 
or adjacent to where they are performing.  They shouldn’t block traffic.  He has no problem with 
grandfathering the existing sign.  Lincoln was in favor of allowing the signs provided they are not 
in the streets or on the sidewalks.   
 
Hahn noted the ordinance clearly states signs cannot be in the street or blocking the sidewalks.  
Hahn was in favor of the 12 x 18 size and grandfathering the existing sign; however, if they were 
to get a new sign, they would then be required to adhere to the current size.   
 
Bernstein suggested if a performer needs to identify what they are doing they could wear a t-shirt.   
 
Kieffer recommended approving it for a year and see how it goes.   
 
Fach feels allowing the grandfathered sign to survive indefinitely is a bad move.  He feels there 
should be uniformity in the entertainers so they all have the same advantage.  He feels it would 
be wise to say a year from now the sign must be 12 x 18.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer 
  NAYS:  Fach 
           
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0475 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REVISIONS TO THE HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION ORDINANCE 

Page 28 of 83



Regular Board Meeting  25 January 2016 

 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to table item 15C-0275 until the second meeting in 
March, 15C-0475.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
           
  The motion carried.  
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-0031 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REQUEST BY THE GALENA ELK’S 
CLUB TO CONDUCT THE FIRST ANNUAL SHAMROCK SHIMMY 5K AND KIDS FUN RUN IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH THE ST. PATRICK’S DAY PARADE ON MARCH 12 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the request by the Galena Elk’s Club to 
conduct the first annual Shamrock Shimmy 5K and kid’s fun run in conjunction with the St. 
Patrick’s Day Parade on March 12, 2016.   
 
Discussion: Hahn stated the Elk’s did a great job last year.  Adding the run will bring in more of 
the public and will energize the town.  The Elk’s will work with the Police Department to minimize 
street closures.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0032 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 
GRANT 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Hahn, to cancel the storm water management grant and 
terminate the contract agreement with FEMA.   
 
Discussion:  Council agreed it wouldn’t be feasible to move forward with this project at this time.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES: Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 
16C-0037 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the Warrants as presented, 16C-0037.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0034 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 

Page 29 of 83



Regular Board Meeting  25 January 2016 

No comments.   
 
16C-0035 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Street Plan – Moran noted at the last meeting there was some debate about the street program.  
Staff has looked at the plan and has made some possible changes.  He will bring it back to the 
City Council so we can let the community know what we have planned.   
 
16C-0036 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner stated he met with State Representative Stewart and Senator Bivins.  They had 
some nice discussion.   
 
16C-0037– MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to recess to Executive Session to discuss the 
following: 

 
 Collective negotiating matters and deliberations concerning salary schedules, Section 2 (c) 

(2) 
 Pending, probable or imminent litigation, Section 2 (c) (11)  
 Review of Executive Session Minutes, Section 2 (c) (21) 

 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
The meeting recessed at 7:01 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 7:29 p.m. 
 
16C-0038 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Fach, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  
  The motion carried.  
 
      
The meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk         

Page 30 of 83



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    February 1, 2016 

RE:    Country Fair   
 
 
Jo Daviess Country Fair Charities proposes to utilize Grant Park on October 6, 7, 8 and 9 for the 
annual Country Fair. The proposed agreement is unchanged from 2015.  I am not aware of any 
issues with the event that would necessitate any changes to the agreement.     
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
   

 
 
  

 

Page 31 of 83



AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement made and entered into this ____ day of ____________, 2016   
between the City of Galena, a Municipal Corporation, (hereinafter referred to as "City") 
and the Jo Daviess County Country Fair Charities Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "user") 
for the exclusive use of Galena's Grant Park for a craft fair on October 06 and 07, 2016 
and the weekend of October 08 and 09, 2016. 
 
 It is mutually agreed that this Agreement grants the User and its exhibitor’s 
exclusive use of Grant Park for the sole and only purpose of sponsoring a craft fair. 
 
 In consideration of the privileges hereinafter granted by the City, User is hereby 
granted the right to occupy Grant Park for the purposes set forth below, subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement: 
 
 1. City shall permit User the exclusive use of Grant Park for set up on 
October 06 & 07, 2016 and the weekend of October 08 and 09, 2016, to conduct a craft 
fair. 
 
 2. User shall be required to deposit the amount of Five Hundred and 00/100 
Dollars ($500) with the City of Galena as and for a security deposit for the premises.  
City shall have the right, but not the obligation to apply the security deposit in whole or 
in part as payment for such amounts as are reasonably necessary to remedy User’s 
defaults of the covenants or agreements contained herein or to correct damages that 
occur to the Park.  User’s potential liability is not limited to the amount of the security 
deposit. 
 
 3. User shall be responsible for park setup, daily clean-up and maintenance 
related to the use and occupancy of Grant Park.  User shall not be responsible for 
damage to Park structures, equipment, grass and foliage. 
 
 4. User agrees to pay to City for the rights and privileges herein granted, 
sum equal to 50 percent of the net gate donation to the Fair for each day of the Fair, 
with the  total not to exceed $10,000.00  
 
The amount due to the City must be settled within (30) days of the Fair. 
 
 5. User agrees that authorized City personnel shall have access to the 
premises at all times. 
 
 6. User further agrees to indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, 
agents and employees from any and all claims, causes of actions and suits accruing or 
resulting from any damage, injury or loss to any person or persons, caused by, arising 
out of, or in any way connected with exercise of the User (and its exhibitors) of the 
privileges here granted. 
  

Page 32 of 83



  

 7. It is mutually agreed that this Agreement and the privileges granted here 
or any part of this Agreement cannot be assigned or otherwise disposed of without 
written consent of the City. 
  
 8. It is mutually understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the 
terms of this Agreement shall be valid, unless made in writing and signed by the parties, 
and that no oral understandings or agreements not incorporated here and no alterations 
or variations of the terms of this Agreement, unless made in writing and signed by the 
parties, shall be binding upon any of the parties. 
 
 9. The privileges here granted shall be granted according to the laws of the 
State of Illinois and the ordinances of the City of Galena. 
 
 10. The City reserves the right to regulate parking of all motor vehicles in 
Grant Park.  No automobiles, trucks or trailers will be permitted to park overnight at 
Grant Park without a special vehicle permit, issued through the Chief of Police. 
 
 11. All food and drink stands must comply with applicable State and local food 
laws. 
 
 12. Dumpsters will be furnished and disposal fees paid by User; User must 
keep covered, at all times, garbage cans and dumpsters.  User shall keep Grant Park 
free of refuse, litter and waste matter. 
 
 13. User shall provide and pay for port-a-potties in Grant Park in a sufficient 
number to accommodate the anticipated crowd as specified in the Illinois Plumbing 
Code. 
 
 14. User will require all exhibitors to post in a conspicuous manner, at their 
stand, a valid itinerant merchant permit, issued pursuant to Chapter 110 of the Galena 
Code of Ordinances and an Illinois sales tax permit. 
 
 15. All materials and equipment of User and exhibitors must be removed from 
Grant Park within twenty-four (24) hours of the closing of the Craft Fair. 
 
 16. User will provide insurance coverage insuring the Park and all facilities 
thereon for all hazards in an amount not less than $1,000,000 and furthermore, agrees 
to name the City of Galena as an additional insured on said policy.  Said insurance is for 
the purpose of insuring both User and the City against any liability or other claims that 
may be made due to acts occurring in or on the aforedescribed real estate or in 
connection with any activities conducted thereon.  A copy of said coverage shall be 
provided to the City prior to the date of the Craft Fair. 
 
 17. User will provide security service and will exercise reasonable precaution 
for the protection of City property and the property of the exhibitors. 
 

Page 33 of 83



  

 18. This contract may be renewed for the following year upon receipt of 
written request by Jo Daviess County Country Fair Charities Inc.- Galena Country Fair 
within fifteen (15) days of close of the event. 
 
IN WITNESS the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the ____ day 
of ____________, 2016. 
 
CITY OF GALENA     JO DAVIESS COUNTY COUNTRY 

FAIR CHARITIES INC. 
 
 
 
BY:_____________________________  BY:_____________________________ 
            Terry Renner, Mayor                             Ron Smith, Chair Person 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
  

Page 34 of 83



 
 
To: Galena City Council and Mark Moran 
From: Tristate Historical Presentations Inc 
Re: Grant’s Triumphant Return Event 
 
 
Tristate Historical Presentation Inc continues to be very involved in events surrounding 
the Civil War, particularly as it relates to the Tri-State area.   
 
We are preparing for our third annual presentation of Grant’s Home Front in late April 
(April 22nd – 24th) of this year. As in the past two years, our Reenactment event 
coincides with Boy Scout Weekend. Again, we will focus our educational events and 
portrayals to be interactive. Boy Scouts who are in uniform will again be allowed in to 
the event at no cost.    
 
Grant’s Home Front will again include an encampment, complete with Union and 
Confederate Soldiers, Civilians, Live Music, and the reenactment of two civil war battles. 
The battles will include cannon and gun fire, and as in the past we will ensure that we are 
directing the cannons down river, which keeps the noise from the cannons to a minimum. 
At this point the battles will occur early afternoon and will be roughly thirty to forty-five 
minutes. 
 
The event is planned to take place, as it has in the past two years in Depot Park, and we 
expect roughly 200 participants and we are hoping for 3000 visitors (which includes the 
Boy Scouts). 
 
We are once again looking forward to Galena’s approval and support of our next Tristate 
Historical Presentation program. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Wendy Heiken at 815-777-0336 or 
Wendy Bade at 224-639-3436 
 
 

Page 35 of 83



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager  

DATE:    February 4, 2016 

RE:    Pool Hours, Rates, and Wages 
 

 
Following please find the proposed schedule, hours, rates and employee wages for the 
2016 pool season. 
 
2016 SCHEDULE AND HOURS  
 
The last day of Galena Public School is tentatively set for Friday, May 27. We would like 
to open the pool for the season on Sunday, May 29. The last day of pool operation 
would be Sunday, August 14.  School resumes Wednesday, August 19.          
 
Proposed hours of operation remain the same as held in 2015. 
 
MONDAY – FRIDAY 
Adult Lap Swim  12:00 PM – 1:00 PM 
Open Swim  1:00 PM – 7:00 PM 
 
SATURDAY ‐ SUNDAY 
Adult Lap Swim  11:00 AM – 12:00 PM 
Open Swim  12:00 PM – 7:00 PM   
 
LESSONS:  JUNE 6 – JULY 29  
MONDAY THRU FRIDAY 
Parent‐Child Aquatics (4 days), July 6‐9   6:00 PM – 7:00 PM 
Children ages 3 ‐ 18 (two week sessions)  9:00 AM – 11:55 AM 
Adults (1 Week), date TBA based on interest  7:00 PM – 8:00 PM 
                        
 
Continued… 

 

Page 36 of 83



2 of 5 

 

WAGES 

The state minimum wage is $8.25 for employees 18 years and older and $7.75 for 
employees 14 to 17 years of age.  Below are the positions and their respective salary. 
New employees would start at minimum wage. Returning employees would receive a 
.25 per hour increase over last year’s rate.  
   
Operations Manager  $14.50 
Pool Supervisor  $10.75    
Concession Supervisor  $10.00 ‐ $10.75       
Certified Lifeguard  $ 7.75 ‐ $9.75         
Cashier  $ 7.75 ‐ $9.50  
Concession Staff   $ 7.75 ‐ $9.75 
Swimming Lessons Coordinator  $15.23   
Swimming Lessons Assistant   $10.50  
Swimming Lessons Instructor  $ 7.75 ‐ $9.75 
 
         
 
POOL RATES    
 
I have researched rates of several area pools (see Chart 1: Pool Rate Comparison), and 
have found the current Galena rates to be significantly lower than those of surrounding 
communities—especially in terms of swimming lessons and season passes. Our focus is 
to keep rates affordable for our taxpayers and guests, but we also need to find ways to 
be sustainable. Our 2015 cost of operations analysis was indicating an average loss of 
approximately $1,000 per day to operate the swimming pool.  
 
 
Continued… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37 of 83



3 of 5 

 
 
Chart 1: Pool Rate Comparison 
 

  Admission  Swim Lessons  Pool Parties  Other 

Alice T. Virtue 
Memorial Pool 

Free—Infants up to age 
1 year 
$2—ages 1‐5 
$3—ages 6‐18 
$4—ages 19+ 
Pool Passes 
$25 per person pre‐
opening 
$30 per person pool 
opening + 
 
 

CURRENT 2015
$20 per person / per 
session 
$25 Jr. Lifeguarding 
 
Parent & Child (ages 6 
months to 2 years / 4 
days) Aquatics $10 
 
Adult Lessons (4 days) 
$15 
 

$125—2‐hour rental   

East Dubuque / 
Dunleith Park 

$3 per person 
Pool Passes 
$45—individual 
$100—family 
 

$40 per person / per 
session 
{M‐Th for two weeks} 
 

$150 first hour
+$75 second hour 

 

Shullsburg  $3.50 per person 
Pool Passes 
$50—Student 
$55—Adult 
$25—Individual Weekly 
Pass 
$35—Family Weekly 
Pass 
 

$30 with a pool pass
$40 without a pool pass 

$100 one‐hour rental 
$125 two‐hour rental 

 

Stockton  $5 in‐district residency 
$8 out‐of‐district 
 

$40 per person / per 
session 
$25 Jr. Lifesaving 

Open weekends after 
school starts through 
Sept 1 

Dubuque Iowa /  
Leisure Services 

Free—ages 3 and under 
$2—ages 4‐17 
$4—ages 18+ 
$2—Senior Citizens (age 
62 and retired) 
 
Pool Passes available 
March 2016 
 
Preschool Playgroup— 
Parents and children age 
6 and younger. Noon‐
12:55 pm. Regular 
admission applies and 
pool passes are valid. 
Children must be 
accompanied by their 
parents at all times. 

YMCA Lifeguard 
Certification 
Saturday Feb 20, 9am‐
6pm 
Sunday Feb 21, 9am‐
5pm 
$160 

Flora & Sutton Pools 
available for evening 
rental 7‐9 pm, Friday & 
Saturday, Saturday & 
Sunday respectively 
 
Sutton—2‐hour rental 
up to 300 people $200 
Flora—2‐hour rental up 
to 300 people $275 
 
Water Playgrounds at 
Sutton and Flora may 
be  rented Saturday & 
Sunday, 11 am – 1 pm 
$80 

Adult Swim / Water 
Walking Pass $4 (1 
hour, noon‐1 pm) 
 
Breastfeeding allowed. 
Bottle feeding allowed 
on pool deck or 
concessions area only. 
Glass or breakable 
plastic bottles are not 
allowed in the facility. 

 
Continued… 

 

Page 38 of 83



4 of 5 

 
 

I would like to propose these modest increases to help cover operating expenses: 
 

POOL ADMISSION 
Daily admissions rates will remain the same as in 2015, no increase. 
   
Infants: 0‐1 year  FREE     
Youth: 5 years & younger  $2     
Students: 6 – 18 years  $3     
Adults: 19 years and older  $4     
Non‐Resident + $2 per admission 
 

 
INDIVIDUAL SEASON PASSES 
In 2015, pool passes were $25 per person if purchased pre‐season, and $30 if purchased 
when the pool opens. Proposed new rates: Introduce season passes based on age, 
keeping passes the same (2015 rate) for ages 1‐18 $25/$30, and increase adult pass to 
$30/$35. 
 
Savings analysis:  
The pool, on average, is open approximately 69 days per season. Our season passes are 
calculating to be 43‐50 cents per day (Opening Day Season Pass Rate divided by 69 days 
open). 
 
If you take the cost of a pass divided by admissions fee you will get the number of days 
needed to attend to “break even” or consider the pass a good investment. Our “break 
even” numbers are ranging from 8 – 10 days of attendance to consider a savings.  
         
  Pre‐Pool  Opening  
  Opening  Day & Summer 
Infants: 0‐1 year   FREE    FREE 
Youth: 1 – 18 years  $25    $30   (.43 per day) 
Adults: 19 years and older  $30    $35   (.50 per day) 
     
   
LESSONS 
Lessons rates have not increased in more than 25 years at Alice T. Virtue Memorial Pool. 
In 2015, our American Red Cross Swimming Lessons fee for a two‐week session was $20. 
Surrounding communities charge $40 per session. I recommend increasing swimming 
lessons to $25 per person / per session and consider raising to $30 per session for 
summer 2017. Even at $30 per person, our rates will still be $10 less than neighboring 
communities. 
 
Children ages 3 ‐18 years   $25  (2015 rate $20)   
Junior Lifesaving Class  $35  (2015 rate $25) 
Parent – Child Aquatics  $15  (2015 rate $10) 
Adult  $15  (2015 rate $10) 

Page 39 of 83



5 of 5 

    
 
POOL PARTIES 
 
In 2015, we reserved the pool on Fridays from 7‐9 pm for private pool parties. The rate 
for a pool party was set at $125 in 2014. Our pool parties have been extremely 
successful. I recommend raising the rate to $130 in 2016. 

 
 

I welcome any questions or thoughts you may have. 
 
 
 
 

Page 40 of 83



1

Mark Moran

From: Petersburg, Brad <bpetersburg@jodaviess.org>
Sent: Wednesday, February 03, 2016 12:27 AM
To: McIntyre, Steven; rjwinkelhake@gmail.com; toddwlincoln@gmail.com; saphire1957

@hotmail.com; jwestemeier@sbcglobal.net
Cc: Walker, Katherine; CHamilton@VisitGalena.org; Althof, Mary; Reimer, Dan; Smith, Ron; 

Mark Moran; gilpinh@aol.com
Subject: Report from Special Committees on a unified DMO
Attachments: LOI 2016-02-02 with Exhibits.pdf

The County Special Committee and the City Special Committee on a unified Destination Marketing Organization have held five joint, 
public meetings since November 2015.  During those meetings, the Committees have been working on developing a letter of intent 
(LOI) that would describe the process and the key business terms for transitioning to one DMO for Jo Daviess County.  At the 
February 2, 2016 joint meeting of the Committees, the attached LOI was unanimously approved to be submitted to Jo Daviess County, 
the City of Galena, the Convention & Visitors Bureau and VisitGalena for their review and, hopefully, approval.  The attached LOI 
aligns closely with the terms of the Singular Voice Plan, which has been supported by numerous entities throughout the County. 
 
As noted in the LOI, the Special Committees are offering to meet again as needed to resolve differences if any of the parties request 
changes to the LOI.  The Committees respectfully request that the attached LOI be presented at your next respective board meetings, if 
possible.  Members of the Committees will do their best to attend your next meetings and answer any questions you may have. 
 
We thank all who provided public comments and especially wish to thank Chris Hamilton, Katherine Walker and Hal Gilpin for their 
very helpful feedback and suggestions throughout the process. 
 
Respectfully, 
City Committee: Todd Lincoln, Robert Hahn, Jerry Westemeier 
County Committee: Steve McIntyre, R.J. Winkelhake, Brad Petersburg 
 
 

Page 41 of 83



 
February 2, 2016 
 
Jo Daviess County & CVB 
City of Galena 
VisitGalena.org 
 
To All Concerned: 
 
 Jo Daviess County and the City of Galena each have appointed a special committee to 
discuss and, if possible, reach agreement on a new Destination Marketing Organization 
(“DMO”) that would replace the current destination marketing organization serving the County 
(Galena and Jo Daviess County Convention & Visitors Bureau or “CVB”) and the current 
destination marketing organization serving the City (Greater Galena Marketing Inc. dba 
VisitGalena.org or “VG”).  These two Special Committees on a unified DMO have held several 
joint meetings to (a) discuss and consider enhancements to the Singular Voice Plan that has 
been widely circulated and supported in the community, (b) obtain further input from the general 
public, and (c) obtain further input from representatives of the CVB and VG.  As a result of those 
meetings, the Special Committees mutually agree that the attached Exhibit A represents a list of 
the main steps that the County, the City and VisitGalena need to take to transition to a single 
DMO in Jo Daviess County.  Further, the Special Committees mutually agree to the key terms 
and conditions outlined in the attached Exhibit B. 
 
 The Special Committees respectfully submit this Letter of Intent (“LOI”) with attachments 
to the County, the City, VisitGalena and the CVB (individually, a “Party”, and collectively, the 
“Parties”) for their consideration.  The Special Committees welcome any suggested changes 
that may improve the proposed process, terms or conditions.  If any such changes are proposed 
by the Parties, the Special Committees will again meet jointly in an effort to reach mutually 
agreeable language to address that point, and then resubmit the revised LOI to the Parties.  If 
the Parties approve this LOI, then each Party will work in good faith to complete the necessary 
steps as outlined in this LOI and take any other reasonable actions that are necessary to 
complete the proposed transition to a unified DMO serving all of Jo Daviess County. 
 
1. Future Role of Special Committees.  If the Parties approve and execute this LOI, it is 
proposed that the County and City Special Committees continue to meet on a monthly basis to 
monitor progress and seek solutions for any problems that may arise.  Monthly meetings would 
continue until the new DMO has been operating as the State Certified DMO for Jo Daviess 
County for three months. 

 
2. Continued Operations.   If the Parties approve and execute this LOI, VG and the CVB 
will continue operations independently while at the same time work and plan in good faith to 
implement a smooth transition to a unified DMO.  Both VG and the CVB will prudently refrain 
from filling any non-critical employment positions that may be open or become open during the 

Page 42 of 83



transition.  In addition, both VG and the CVB will prudently refrain from spending resources on 
programs, materials or services that are likely to be of little value to the unified DMO.  
 
3. Closing Date.  The Parties acknowledge that time is of importance and that they will 
work towards closing the transaction as quickly as possible. 
 
4. Conditions to Closing.  Closing on the DMO Services Agreement and related 
documents will be subject to satisfaction of the conditions outlined in Exhibit B. 
 
5. NonBinding Agreement.  This letter is nonbinding and constitutes an indication of 
intent only and creates no liability or obligation of any nature whatsoever among the parties 
hereto with respect to any contemplated transaction or any other matter or action described or 
referred to herein. Legally binding obligations with respect to the contemplated transaction will 
only arise upon execution of a definitive DMO Services Agreement and related agreements with 
respect to the transaction. 
 

If the foregoing is satisfactory, please indicate your agreement by signing a copy of this 
letter and returning it to our attention. The City and County Special Committees look forward to 
facilitating the transition to a unified DMO for Jo Daviess County. 
 
 
Jo Daviess County     City of Galena 
 
By: ______________________________  By: ______________________________ 
 
Its: ______________________________  Its: ______________________________ 
 
 
VisitGalena.org     CVB 
 
By: ______________________________  By: ______________________________ 
 
Its: ______________________________  Its: ______________________________ 
 
 

Page 43 of 83



Exhibit A - Steps to Transition to a unified DMO
ver. 1/25/2016

Step Co City VG DMO Note Timeline

1) Execute Letter of Intent X X X summary of the process, terms & conditions target Feb 2016

2) Assemble inaugural DMO Board X follow process outlined in LOI
start after LOI is signed; complete 
process ASAP

3) Create new DMO entity (articles, bylaws, 
EIN, etc.) X

structure entity to be eligible for IRS 
501(c)(6) designation

start after initial DMO Board 
assembled

4) Draft the DMO Services Agreement X X X
formal agreement between City, County and 
new DMO

start after LOI is signed; execute at 
closing

5) Start CEO search X
create job description; establish 
qualifications; advertise

start after initial DMO Board 
assembled

6) Create DMO budget and related financials X required by City, County and IRS
start after initial DMO Board 
assembled

7) Obtain IRS tax-exempt status X
apply to IRS for 501(c)(6) "business league" 
designation

start after DMO entity & budget 
created; required before closing

8) Terminate/assign existing agreements - 
County X

service providers (marketing, website, rent, 
utilities, etc.)

start planning after LOI is signed; 
execute at closing

9) Terminate/assign existing agreements - 
City X X existing agreement between City & VG

start planning after LOI is signed; 
execute at closing

10) Terminate/assign existing agreements - 
VG X

service providers (marketing, website, rent, 
utilities, etc.)

start planning after LOI is signed; 
execute at closing

11) Deal with employment agreements - 
County X X

formalize options for existing County 
employees;  DMO offer employment to 
same employees, except CEO

start planning after LOI is signed; 
execute at closing

12) Deal with employment agreements - VG X X

formalize options for existing VG 
employees;  DMO offer employment to 
same employees, except CEO

start planning after LOI is signed; 
execute at closing

13) Hire CEO X on or about the closing date

14) Transfer State DMO Certification X
County relinquish certification; DMO obtain 
certification

start planning after LOI is signed; 
execute at closing

15) Transfer financial and capital assets from 
CVB & VG to DMO X X X

transfer cash, AP, AR, other accounts, 
computers, furniture, etc. to DMO

start planning after LOI is signed; 
execute at closing

16) Closing X X X X execute appropriate agreements target date TBD
17) County Tourism Capital Development 
Fund X

no change; continue to use for benefit of 
tourism and new DMO no action required

18) Close CVB department of JD County X not a closing requirement post-closing
19) Dissolve VG X not a closing requirement post-closing

Parties Involved

Page 44 of 83



Step 1 – Execute Letter of Intent 
Once the County, City and VG execute the Letter of Intent, the Parties will work in good faith on 
implementing the steps outlined in Exhibit A in accordance with the key terms and conditions 
outlined in this Exhibit B.  On a 50-50 basis, the CVB and VG shall pay all reasonable expenses 
incurred by the newly formed DMO to perform the tasks assigned to it in transitioning to a 
unified DMO. 
 

Step 2 – Assemble inaugural DMO Board 
A)  Composition of inaugural DMO Board; Length of Initial Terms:  

The inaugural board shall be comprised of 11 individuals, 4 appointed by the entities listed 
below and 7 elected to represent the business categories listed below.  Directors will serve 
for 3-year terms except that the inaugural board shall have initial terms as noted below.  
 
Appointed Directors are appointed by the following entities… 
1) Jo Daviess County (non-voting) – 3 years. 
2) City of Galena (non-voting) – 3 years. 
3) Eagle Ridge Resort & Spa (voting) – 3 years. 
4) Chestnut Mountain Resort (voting) – 3 years. 
 
Elected Directors are elected to represent the following business categories… 
5) Large lodging (17 rooms & larger) – 2 years. 
6) Small lodging (16 rooms and smaller) – 2 years. 
7) Retail – 2 years. 
8) Restaurant – 1 year. 
9) At-large – 1 year. 
10)  At-large – 1 year. 
11)  At-large – 1 year.  

Note: After the inaugural board has been seated, the DMO articles and bylaws will govern 
future board appointments.  It is anticipated that board seats 1 – 4 will continue to be 
appointed by the entities identified above.  It is anticipated that board seats 5 – 11 will be 
appointed by the DMO Board based upon nominations from businesses in the category 
being represented. 

B)  Director Qualifications for inaugural DMO Board:  
All Directors on the inaugural DMO Board shall be residents of the County, owners of a 
business operating in the County, or an employee of a business operating in the County.  In 
addition, Directors representing a business category must own or work for a business in that 
category. 

C)  Appointing/Electing the inaugural DMO Board: 
1) Within 30 days after the LOI has been executed, each of the four entities having the 

right to appoint a director to the DMO Board shall take formal action to do so. 

Page 45 of 83



2) The four Appointed Directors shall manage the election process for the balance of the 
Elected Directors. 

3) The lead contact for every tourism-related business and event coordinator in Jo Daviess 
County shall be eligible to vote.  Each eligible voter may only vote one ballot. 

4) The Appointed Directors, with support from the CVB and VG, shall prepare a 
comprehensive list of eligible voters. 

5) The Appointed Directors shall prepare a ballot that includes a list of the seven Elected 
Director positions with a blank for one write-in candidate for each such position. 

6) The Appointed Directors shall send a ballot to each eligible voter along with instructions 
for returning the ballots.  

7) Each eligible voter may write-in a candidate for each of the seven Elected Director 
positions. 

8) Ballots must be returned by a certain date established by the Appointed Directors.  
Ballots will be opened and tallied by, or under the direct oversight of, the Appointed 
Directors.  Ballots will be saved and, in case of a challenge, the Appointed Directors shall 
refer to legal counsel for guidance.  

9) Each Elected Director position shall be awarded to the individual receiving the largest 
number of votes among those who satisfy the Director Qualifications and are willing to 
serve.   

10) If there is any dispute as to the eligibility of a voter or the validity of a ballot, the 
Appointed Directors shall consider the matter and make a final determination. 

11) The Appointed Directors may establish other policies and procedures to achieve a fair 
and transparent election. 

 
Step 3 – Create DMO Entity 
The DMO Board shall prepare articles, bylaws and other documents to formally create the DMO 
as a nonprofit business entity eligible for IRS 501(c)(6) designation or, after proper due 
diligence, utilize an existing 501(c)(6) entity. 
 
Step 4 - DMO Services Agreement 
The DMO will engage legal counsel to draft a DMO Services Agreement incorporating the 
following key terms and conditions.  As soon as possible, the draft will be circulated to the 
Parties for review and further input. 

 

A)  Funding the DMO:  
1) The County will collect hotel/motel tax from lodging facilities in the County, except 

within the City of Galena, and 
a) Retain funds to recover actual costs of collecting and disbursing hotel/motel 

taxes. 

Page 46 of 83



b) Pay the balance collected the previous month to the DMO on or before the 3rd 
Friday of each month. 

c) Provide monthly reports to the DMO on tax amounts collected and on lodging 
businesses delinquent in paying such tax to the County. 

2) The City will collect hotel/motel tax from lodging facilities within the City of Galena, and 
a) Retain [none or same as County] to cover related expenses. 
b) Pay the balance collected the previous month to the DMO on or before the 3rd 

Friday of each month. 
c) Provide monthly reports to the DMO on tax amounts collected and on lodging 

businesses delinquent in paying such tax to the City. 

B)  DMO Services to City & County:  
1) The DMO shall…  

a) Develop policies, plans and programs for the promotion of tourism. 
b) Engage in long-range planning to assure full utilization of the programs and 

finances available to the DMO. 
c) Provide personnel necessary to implement a sound plan of operation. 
d) Undertake regular surveys to understand visitor preferences and trends, and use 

such information in developing marketing activities. 
e) Collaborate with other DMOs and business organizations to improve the visitor 

experience and to utilize resources as efficiently as possible. 
f) Seek grant funding and other sources of revenue to supplement City and County 

funding. 
g) Operate as if it were subject to Open Meetings Laws. 

2) Any material contracts the DMO may enter with service providers shall be reviewed by 
the DMO’s legal counsel and include a requirement for lien waivers whenever 
applicable. 

 

C)  DMO Financial Reports:  
1) Annually.  At least 60 days prior to each FY, the DMO shall provide to the County and the 

City…     
a) A projected income statement (or budget) with comparison to the preceding two 

FYs. 
b) A balance sheet and supporting schedules if needed for clarity. 
c) A resolution of the DMO board approving the above financial statements.  

2) Quarterly.  Within 60 days after each of the DMO’s fiscal quarters, the DMO shall 
provide to the County and the City an actual vs. projected income statement. 

3) Monthly.  The DMO shall provide to the County and the City a copy of the monthly 
financial reports provided to the DMO Board. 

Page 47 of 83



4) Acceptance of Financial Reports.  Unless the City or the County provide written notice to 
the DMO formally objecting to a timely submitted financial report within 60 days after 
receiving such report, such report shall be deemed accepted by the City and the County.  

5) Annual Audit.  The DMO shall provide a copy of an independent audit within 30 days 
after the DMO has received such audit.  

6) Inspection or Special Audit.  Upon reasonable notice, the City and the County have the 
right to inspect the books and records of the DMO and obtain their own audit.  

7) Working Capital and Reserves.  The DMO shall attempt to maintain working capital 
equal to at least 25% of its budgeted operating expenses.  The DMO may fund a capital 
reserve or other reserves if included in a budget accepted by both the County and the 
City. 

8) GAAP.  The DMO agrees to maintain records and create reports in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

9) FY.  The DMO shall establish a July 1 – June 30 FY to coincide with the State of Illinois FY. 
 
D)  DMO Business Reports: 

1) The DMO shall submit monthly reports to the County and the City including the DMO 
Board meeting minutes, occupancy rates, visitor center activity and website traffic. 

2) The DMO shall report verbally to the City Council and the County Board in April, August 
and December regarding its year-to-date and planned activities, including performance 
measures.  
 

E)  Term & Termination:  
1) The initial term of the Agreement shall be for 3 years.  
2) On, or about, each anniversary of the DMO Services Agreement, representatives of the 

Parties shall meet to discuss any concerns regarding the DMO Services Agreement and 
consider amendments thereto if necessary.  Unless a Party wishes to terminate the 
Agreement, the Agreement shall automatically be extended for an additional year such 
that the current term shall always remain 2 – 3 years in length. 

3) Termination without cause.  The Agreement shall not automatically renew and shall 
terminate at the end of the term if a Party provides to the other Parties written notice 
of intent to terminate the Agreement. 

4) Termination for Cause.   
a) The Agreement may be immediately terminated by any Party to this Agreement 

if another Party files for bankruptcy, becomes insolvent, or violates any of the 
following critical terms of the Agreement... [Once the LOI is approved and work 
begins on drafting this Agreement, legal counsel will need to help with this 
language.] 

Page 48 of 83



b) The Agreement may be terminated by any Party if another Party violates any 
other term or condition of the Agreement and such term or condition is not 
cured within 30 days.  [same here; legal counsel will need to help with this 
language] 

F)  Amendments:  
1) The DMO Services Agreement may be amended only upon mutual written agreement of 

the Parties. 

G)  Other standard contract language recommended by legal counsel: 
1) Indemnification 
2) Insurance requirements 
3) Non-discrimination 
4) Independent contractor 
5) Reps & Warranties 
6) Etc. 

 
Step 5 – Start CEO Search 
As soon as possible after the inaugural DMO Board has been appointed/elected, the DMO 
Board shall create a CEO job description, establish CEO qualifications, and begin advertising for 
a CEO.  To minimize any disruption in service, this position must be filled at or before closing. 
 

Step 6 – Create DMO Budget and related financials 
To be prepared by the DMO Board with cooperation from CVB and VG management.  IRS will 
require financial statements as part of the application for tax-exempt status.  Such financials 
shall be submitted to the City and the County according to the process outlined for DMO 
Financial Reports in the DMO Services Agreement.    
 

Step 7 – Obtain Tax-exempt Status 
The DMO may need to engage an attorney or consultant to help prepare the IRS application.  
Closing cannot be scheduled until IRS has approved the 501(c)(6) application. 

 

Step 8, 9, 10 – Terminate/Assign Existing Agreements 
The County, City and VG shall take the necessary steps to assign or terminate all existing service 
provider contracts effective on, or about, the closing date.  Other than rental agreements and 
utility agreements that may need to be assigned, the DMO board and management shall 
determine (a) if it wishes to accept assignment of any existing County or VG service provider 
contracts and (b) it wishes to enter any new service provider contracts. 

 

Page 49 of 83



Step 11 & 12 – Deal with Employment Agreements 
The County and VG shall take the necessary steps to (a) terminate existing positions in the CVB 
and VG effective on or about the closing date and (b) inform existing employees of employment 
alternatives they may have.  The DMO shall offer comparable positions to each existing CVB 
and VG employee, except the CEO of each organization, with employment starting on or about 
the closing date. 
 

Step 13 – Hire CEO 
To minimize any disruption in service, this position must be filled at or before closing. 

  

Step 14 – Transfer State DMO Certification 
The County shall take the necessary steps to relinquish State DMO Certification at closing.  The 
DMO shall take necessary steps to be awarded the State DMO Certification at closing. 
 

Step 15 – Transfer Financial and Capital Assets 
The County and VG shall take the necessary steps to transfer to the DMO relevant financial and 
capital assets (and liabilities if acceptable to the DMO) at closing.  This may include cash, bank 
accounts, AR, AP, loans, computers, office furniture and equipment, etc. 
 

Step 16 – Closing 
The Parties agree to work diligently to accomplish the above steps in a timely manner and will 
mutually agree on a closing date as soon as practicable.  The closing will be subject to the 
negotiation and execution of definitive transaction documents that will include mutually 
agreeable language recommended by legal counsel representing the Parties. 

 

Step 17 – County Tourism Capital Development Fund 
No action required.  The County retains control of this fund.  Disbursements from this fund 
include capital improvements to buildings used for tourism promotion and administration, and 
must be used for the benefit of the new DMO or its mission. 
 

Step 18 – Close CVB 
After the closing, the County may take action to close the Galena and Jo Daviess County 
Convention & Visitors Bureau. 
 

Step 19 – Dissolve VG 
After the closing, the VG Board may take action to dissolve Greater Galena Marketing Inc. dba 
VisitGalena.org. 

Page 50 of 83



02.01.16 
 
Mark Moran 
City of Galena 
101 Green St. 
Galena IL 61036 
 
Dear Mark, 
 
It is the intent of this correspondence to request renewal of the contract for destination marketing 
services between the City of Galena and Greater Galena Marketing Inc., dba VisitGalena.org. 

 
VisitGalena wishes to express its desire to renew the contract with the exception of item F, under section 16 
on page 5 regarding the effort to combine the Jo Daviess County CVB and VisitGalena. VisitGalena believes it 
has made a supreme effort and spent considerable time and resources trying to create one DMO and should 
not be required to officially pursue this initiative any longer. 
 
While VisitGalena would remain open-minded and listen to additional dialogue concerning possibilities, it 
needs to have the flexibility to focus on other priorities going forward. 
 
Thank you in advance for your consideration regarding this matter. Please feel free to contact me at if 
you have any questions regarding this request. On behalf of the Board of Directors, we appreciate the 
continued support demonstrated by your office and the Galena City Council. 
 
Yours truly, 
 

 
 
Chris Hamilton 
President & CEO 
VisitGalena.org 
chamilton@visitgalena.org 
Tel. 815.776.9200 

Page 51 of 83

mailto:chamilton@visitgalena.org


Page 52 of 83



Page 53 of 83



Page 54 of 83



Page 55 of 83



Page 56 of 83



Page 57 of 83



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:     Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council, and Mark Moran 
 
FROM:   Jonathan Miller, Building Official 
 
DATE:      January 29, 2016 
 
RE:      Prairie Ridge Senior Housing Permit Fee Reduction Request 
 
 
Recently, it seems that the Prairie Ridge Senior Housing project may be moving ahead.  John Cooke, 
President and CEO of Prairie Ridge, and its board members have requested a reduced permit fee of 
$25,000 for the project.  This permit fee would include the costs of the building permit, as well as the 
water/sewer hookup, and a water meter radio read device cost.   
 
Based on an estimated project cost of $12,000,000, which was supplied to me by the Contractor, the 
current permit fee would be $54,305.  This permit fee does not include the water/sewer hookup fee of 
$3000, and the water meter radio read device cost of $200.  There is also an upcharge that is determined 
by the size of any water service line exceeding 3/4”.  After all of the fees are included, based on estimated 
costs, the total current permit fee would be approximately $57,505.  We have also already contracted 
Baranski Hammer and Associates to complete the plan review of this project for a cost to the city of 
$12,000.  The Prairie Ridge board is asking for a cost reduction in the permit fee of $32,505.   
 
The permit fee above is based on an estimated project cost and could vary at the time of permitting if the 
permit fee reduction is denied.  The water and sewer hookup fees were also based on the current set of 
plans that were submitted to the city in 2014.  From what I understand, the plans have been modified, 
but have yet to be resubmitted.  The water/sewer hookup fees could also change if modifications to the 
size of the water service line were made.   

Page 58 of 83



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
January 28, 2016 
 

Mark Moran 

City Administrator 

City of Galena 

Galena, IL 61036 

 

 

 

Dear Mark, 

 
Prairie Ridge of Galena, Inc. will be developing a 64 unit Senior Housing community, including 50 

apartments that will provide independent living with services and 14 memory care suites next 

to Midwest Medical Center at 11636 W. Norris Lane. 

 

The project represents one of the largest private investments in the City of Galena and Jo Daviess 

County in many years.  Prairie Ridge will invest more than $17 million and our focus is on using as 

many local contractors and services as possible, producing hundreds of construction jobs and 

more than a dozen permanent positions. 

 

In accordance with our previous discussions, Prairie Ridge is requesting that the City of Galena 

charge no more than $25,000 in fees for permits for the project.  At this time we are requesting 

written confirmation that our project has met all permitting requirements and of the fee 

requirement to receive the necessary permits. 

 

We look forward to working with the City of Galena to complete the project in the very near 

future. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

John Cooke   

President and CEO 
 

 

                              

Page 59 of 83

http://www.midwestmedicalcenter.org/wordpress/


CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 6, 2016 

RE:    2016 Capital Improvement Plan   
 
 
On January 11, you approved the five‐year Capital Improvement Plan after considerable 
discussion about the street improvement component.  Our staff reviewed the street plan in the 
context of your comments and proposes several changes.  I am submitting for your review and 
possible approval the updated street plan.  The $1 million construction program would be 
funded entirely by the infrastructure sales tax and would not involve any new debt.  
 
I look forward to your discussion about the plan.  Please let me know if you have any questions.   
  

 

 

Page 60 of 83



FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21
Street Location Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

FY 16/17

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay

Claude Street and Field Street Meeker Street bridge to Public Works building 154,110$                 
Hill Street West Street to Ridge Street 93,178$                    
Hill Street Dodge Street to West Street 25,371$                    
Alexander Street Driscoll Street to end 18,192$                    
Bench Street Gear Street south to South Street 7,964$                      

Sales Tax Projects Total 298,815$                 

Alley Resurfacing 
NA  

Alley Total ‐$                          

Sealcoat
S. Bench Street Gear Street to the end 8,058$                      

Sealcoat Total 8,058$                      

TOTAL FY 16/17 306,873$                 
FY 17/18

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay

   
West Street Franklin Street to High Street 60,567$                   
Elk Street High Street to Dodge Street to West Street 19,371$                   

Sales Tax Projects Total 79,938$                  

Alley Resurfacing
NA  

Alley Total ‐$                           

Sealcoat
School Section West, Donegan, Dodge, Muir, Bridge and Bluff Streets 35,980$                   

Sealcoat Total 35,980$                  

TOTAL FY 17/18 115,918$                  
FY 18/19

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay

Hickory Street  US 20 north to Ridge Street 112,291$                  
Hill Street High Street east to Prospect Street  14,008$                    

Sales Tax Projects Total 126,299$                    

Alley Resurfacing
Alley    Between Prospect Street and High Street, south of Hill 6,004$                      
   

  Alley Total 6,004$                        
Sealcoat
NA  

Sealcoat Total ‐$                          

TOTAL FY 18/19 132,303$                    
FY 19/20
Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
High Street US 20 to South 61,928$                  
Technical Drive Chetlain Lane north to Industrial Drive 76,766$                  
Fourth Street US 20 to Lafeyette 8,111$                    
Jefferson, Madison, and Third Street East of Park Avenue, Third Street between Jefferson Street and Adams  44,687$                  

Sales Tax Projects Total 191,492$                 

Alley Resurfacing
Alley  Between Madison Street and Jefferson Street 7,886$                    

Alley Total 7,886$                      
Sealcoat
NA

Sealcoat Total ‐$                        

TOTAL FY 19/20 199,378$                 
FY 20/21
Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay

Industrial Drive US 20 to Technical Drive 56,345$                                  
Adams Street and Third Street Adams Street from Park Ave to end and Third  from Adams north to end 42,326$                                  
Dodge Street US 20 to Mars Avenue 119,997$                                

Sales Tax Projects Total 218,668$                               
Alley Resurfacing  
Behind Galena Green South of Green Street 17,552$                                  

Alley Total 17,552$                                  
Sealcoat
Mississippi Street Bench Street to Dodge Street 6,042$                                    
South Dodge Street Gear Street to Mississippi 2,679$                                    
Council Hill Road Hughlett Creek to Buckhill 11,946$                                  
Boggess Street Fifth Street to US20 10,200$                                  
Electronics Recycling Lot Meeker Street 6,150$                                    
School Section West, Donegan, Dodge, Muir, Bridge and Bluff Streets 38,550$                                  

Sealcoat Total 75,567$                                  

TOTAL FY 20/21 311,787$                               

1,066,259$             

APPENDIX A:  5‐YEAR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (FY 2017‐2021)

TOTAL CIP COST

5-Year Street Improvement Program
APX. A

Page 61 of 83



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2016-2017

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

Page 62 of 83



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

APPENDIX A1

FY 2017-2018

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

GEAR STREET RECONSTRUCTION

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

Page 63 of 83



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2018-2019

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

IDOT SPRING ST RECONSTRUCTION

Page 64 of 83



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2019-2020

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

Page 65 of 83



W

e

s

t

Field

J
o
 
D

a
v
i
e
s
s
 
S

t

D
o
d
g
e
 S

t

Bluff St

T
u

r
n

e
y
 
 
 
S

t

Muir St

R
i
d
g
e
 
S

t

D

a

n

d

a

r

 

S

t

I

n

d

u

s

t

r

i

a

l

 

A

v

e

'

A

'

 

S

t

'

A

'

 

S

t

W
 Chetlain Ln

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

St

W
a

n
n

 

Winnebago

       Dr

E

l

m

 

S

t

B

l
a

c

k

h

a

w

k

Sioux

  Ct

F

u

l

t

o

n

S

t

C

l

i

n

t

o

n

S

t

A

l

e

x

a

n

d

e

r

 

S

t

C

a

m

p

b

e

l

l

 

M

e

n

o

m

i
n

e

e

 

K
elly Ln

St

J
a
m

e
s
 

S
q
u
a
r
e

S

p

r

i
n

g

 
S

t

S

t

W

e

s

t

S

 

 

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

G

e

a

r

S

t

M

is
s
is

s
ip

p
i 
S

t

I
o

w

a

 
S

t

W
a
t
e
r
 

S

D

e
c
a
t
u
r

B

o

u

t

h

i

l

l

i

e

r

B

o

g

g

e

s

s

P

a

r

k

A

d

a

m

s

 

 

4

t

h

3
r
d

4
t
h

L
a
f
a
y
e
t
t
e
 

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

5

t

h

S

t

S

t

A

v

e

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

o

u

t
h

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

Irv
in

e

D
r

G

a
l
e
n
a

M

a

i
n

S

t

C

o

m

m

e

r

c

e

W

a

t

e

r

S

t

S

t

H

i

l

l

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

G

r

e

e

n

S

t

M

e

e

k

e

r

S

t

N

 

D

o

d

g

e

S

t

B

r

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

A
p
a
c
h
e
 
C

t

N

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

B

a

r

r

y

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

 

H

i

l

l

 

G

e

a

r

W

e

s

t

S

t

N

C

l

a

u

d

e

 

S

t

3

r

d

 

S

t

J

e

f

f

e

r

s

o

n

 

S

t

M

o

n

r

o

e

 

 

M

a

d

i

s

o

n

 

 

 

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

W

i

g

h

t

 

 

S

t

W

a

s

h

i
n

g

t

o

n

W

e

s

t

M

a

r

s

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

E

l

k

 

 

S

t

E

l

k

N

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

S

t

D

i

v

i

s

i

o

n

S

t

S

u

m

m

i
t

S

t

S

H

i
c

k

o

r

y

S

S

t

M

a

p

l

e

 

S

t

E

l

k

S

t

P

a
r
k
 
A

v
e

J

a

c

k

s

o

n

 

S

t

D

o
m

in
o

S

a

t

u

r

n

 

L

n

S
t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

t

D

r

W
  R

ed  G
ates  R

d

S

t

B

r

o

a

d

w

a

y

W

P

o

w

d

e

r

H

o

u

s

e

H

i
l
l

R

d

W
 
 
R

e
d

 
 
G

a
t
e

s
 
 
R

d

T

e

c

h

n

i

c

a

l

D

r

C

o

b

b

l

e

s

t

o

n

e

O

l

d

e

n

b

u

r

g

C
o

u
n

t
r
y

V
i
e

w
 
C

t

W
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
 
 
 
C

t

B

a

r

t

e

l

l

Blvd

Coneflower

        Cir

S

p

r
o

u

l
e

L

n

Klockow St

Caroldon

        Ct

C
r
o
s
s

R

d

N

R

d

F

e

r

r

y

L

a

n

d

i

n

g

R

iv
e
s

 
 
 
S

t

S

t

J

o

h

n

s

o

n

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

A
p
o
llo

   C
t

L

n

J
u
p
i
t
e
r
 
D

r

N

B

l

a

c

k

j

a

c

k

R

d

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

W

i

l

l

i

a

m

 

 

 

 

S

t

S

 
P

r
o

s

p

e

c

t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

S

t

G

e

a

r

S

t

T

r

a

i

l

W

S

t

a

g

e

c

o

a

c

h

S

t

D

o

n

e

g

a

n

S

t

N

R

d

S
c
h
o
o
l

S

e
c
t
i
o
n

S

t

N Jackson St

Brown

 St

D

e

w

e

y

A

v

e

F

r

a

n

k

l

i

n

S

t

D

o

d

g

e

N

N

H
i
g
h

S
t

M

e

e

k

e

r

O

a

k

 

 

S

t

B

r
i
d

g

e

 
 
 
S

t

H

i
l
l
 

 

S

t

B

u

s

s

a

n

 

A

v

e

G

r

a

n

t

 

C

t

L

i

n

c

o

l

n

 

A

v

e

Pawnee

    Ct

C

i

r

c

l

e

F

i
r
e

C

o

u

n

c

i

l

R
y
a
n
 
C

t

 Rolling

Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct

Altenburg

     Ln

S

p

r

i

n

g

S

t

R

i

d

g

e

 

S

t

S

t

Y

o

u

n

g

S

t

S

 

O

a

k

 

 

 

S

t

S

p

a

r

e

 

 

 

S

t

W

e

s

t

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

S

 

H

i

g

h

 

S

t

S

 

 

H

i

g

h

 

 

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

P

r

o

s

p

e

c

t

N

S

t

B

e

n

c

h

S

t

S

t

S

t

S

S

t

N

M

a

i

n

N

 

H

i

g

h

S

t

S

t

N

 

H

i

c

k

o

r

y

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

t

H

i

l

l

 

S

t

D

r

i

s

c

o

l

l

 

S

t

V

i

n

e

 

S

t

S

t

McBreams

Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff

      Dr

L

n

B

l

v

d

E

x

c

h

a

n

g

e

 

S

t

A

v

e

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2020-2021

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

Page 66 of 83



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 29, 2016 

RE:    MABAS Addendum   
 
 
Our Fire Department is a member of the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS).  Member first 
responders agree to provide emergency resources to communities in need under a master 
agreement that was last updated in 2007.  As described in the attached letter from MABAS‐Illinois 
President, Jeff Macko, members are requested to adopt an addendum to the master agreement to 
become compliant with FEMA declaration of disaster policies regarding agency reimbursements.  
 
I am attaching several documents to assist you with evaluating the contract addendum. 
 

1. Letter from MABAS President, Jeff Macko 
2. Article, “MABAS Contract Addendum and Reimbursement Concerns” explaining the purpose 

of the addendum 
3. First Addendum to MABAS Master Agreement 
4. Ordinance Authorizing an Addendum to Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Agreement 
5. Memo from City of Rochelle Fire Chief explaining the addendum, its financial impact, and 

recommending approval (this memo also expresses the opinions of Galena Fire Chief, Randy 
Beadle) 

 
City Attorney, Joe Nack, has reviewed the addendum and ordinance and would be happy to 
answer any questions during the meeting.  Nack, Beadle and I recommend the adoption of the 
first addendum and the ordinance amending the master agreement.   
 
   

 
 
  

 

Page 67 of 83



Page 68 of 83



Page 69 of 83



Page 70 of 83



Page 71 of 83



Page 72 of 83



Page 73 of 83



Page 74 of 83



Page 75 of 83



Page 76 of 83



Page 77 of 83



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 1/26/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 04, 2016  09:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
020116 1 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 02/01/2016 417.92 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 417.92

BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854)
0167023 1 Invoice 2011 1-TON PLOW MOLD  01/18/2016 1,221.06 01.41.613.04
0167248 1 Invoice BARRICADE/CONES 01/27/2016 610.86 01.41.652.04

Total BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854): 1,831.92

CARGILL, INC. (119097)
2902651301 1 Invoice SALT 01/21/2016 1,719.87 01.41.614.07
2902654700 1 Invoice SALT 01/22/2016 1,735.69 01.41.614.07
2902667612 1 Invoice SALT 01/29/2016 1,728.81 01.41.614.07
2902670272 1 Invoice SALT 02/01/2016 1,702.00 01.41.614.07

Total CARGILL, INC. (119097): 6,886.37

DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461)
227061410 1 Invoice TRAFFIC PAINT 01/26/2016 1,162.35 01.41.514.01

Total DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461): 1,162.35

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
968967 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 02/03/2016 215.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 215.00

FELD FIRE (119879)
0290022 1 Invoice THERMAL IMAGER BATT 01/22/2016 460.00 22.22.652.00

Total FELD FIRE (119879): 460.00

FIRE TEXT RESPONSE, LLC (119945)
2016-1023 1 Invoice CELL PHONE ALERT SYS 01/18/2016 500.00 22.22.652.00

Total FIRE TEXT RESPONSE, LLC (119945): 500.00

FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045)
6581 1 Invoice STORAGE BARN 01/26/2016 5,027.20 22.22.840.05

Total FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045): 5,027.20

G & K SERVICES (532)
012516 1 Invoice UNIFORM SERVICES 01/25/2016 429.50 01.41.579.02

Total G & K SERVICES (532): 429.50

GALENA ARC (850)
020816 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  02/08/2016 100.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 100.00

Page 78 of 83



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 1/26/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 04, 2016  09:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

GALENA AREA EME.MED. SERV (234)
2317 1 Invoice DEFIB SUPPLIES 01/22/2016 1,052.60 22.22.840.00

Total GALENA AREA EME.MED. SERV (234): 1,052.60

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
62061 1 Invoice SQUAD 4 MAINTENANCE 12/18/2015 27.47 01.21.513.06
62080 1 Invoice SQUAD 2 MAINTENANCE 12/21/2015 236.09 01.21.513.06
62100 1 Invoice SQUAD 4 TIRES 12/22/2015 85.40 01.21.513.06
62162 1 Invoice SQUAD 3 MAINTENANCE 12/30/2015 28.65 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 377.61

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00046894 1 Invoice PUBLIC HEARING NOTIC 01/08/2016 29.45 01.11.553.00
00046986 1 Invoice PUBLIC HEARING NOTIC 01/14/2016 30.40 01.11.553.00
00047144 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 01/22/2016 121.60 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 181.45

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
020116 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 02/01/2016 8.00 01.13.654.00
020116 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 02/01/2016 25.00 22.22.538.01
020116 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 02/01/2016 30.00 22.22.651.00
020116 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 02/01/2016 27.00 58.54.654.01
020116 5 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS - RUG S 02/01/2016 20.00 01.41.652.00

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 110.00

GALL'S, INC. (712)
004732109 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/Keith 01/14/2016 32.36 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 32.36

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWC000073 1 Invoice CREDIT 12/01/2015 49.53- 01.41.613.05
GWI006195 1 Invoice SWEEPER 01/13/2016 236.10 01.41.613.11
GWI006255 1 Invoice 2012 1-TON 01/26/2016 277.76 01.41.613.03
GWI006256 1 Invoice 07 1-TON EQUIPMENT 01/26/2016 105.34 17.52.517.02
GWI006257 1 Invoice 2012 1-TON 01/26/2016 104.39 01.41.613.03
GWI006258 1 Invoice NEW HOLLAND FILTERS 01/26/2016 74.43 01.41.613.10
GWI006277 1 Invoice BACKHOE 01/27/2016 271.08 01.41.613.07

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 1,019.57

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
020116 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 02/01/2016 240.00 01.13.511.07
020116 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  02/01/2016 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

HOOTING COYOTE, LLC (120185)
400 1 Invoice STORAGE BARN 09/29/2015 300.00 22.22.840.05

Page 79 of 83



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 1/26/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 04, 2016  09:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total HOOTING COYOTE, LLC (120185): 300.00

HYDE, MARY BETH (101)
020216 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 02/02/2016 383.33 01.14.562.00

Total HYDE, MARY BETH (101): 383.33

IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1622094 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 01/19/2016 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034)
36160 1 Invoice WEBBING FOR FF GEAR 01/21/2016 138.91 22.22.840.00

Total ILLINOIS FIRE STORE (119034): 138.91

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1601225 1 Invoice STORM SEWER PIPES 01/25/2016 856.90 20.25.515.00

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 856.90

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
020116 1 Invoice ELECTRIC (ST. LIGHTS) 02/01/2016 5,384.16 15.41.572.00
020116 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 02/01/2016 432.44 01.13.571.01
020116 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 02/01/2016 528.97 01.21.571.01
020116 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 02/01/2016 133.99 12.10.571.01
020116 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 02/01/2016 50.71 17.52.571.01
020116 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 02/01/2016 402.28 20.25.576.01
020116 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 02/01/2016 388.66 22.22.576.01
020116 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 02/01/2016 591.91 58.54.571.01
020116 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 02/01/2016 38.12 01.41.571.01
020116 10 Invoice LIFT STATION 02/01/2016 136.01 52.43.850.09

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,087.25

JO DAVIESS CTY ANIMAL CONTROL (437)
012516 1 Invoice DOG PICK UP 01/25/2016 70.00 01.21.540.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY ANIMAL CONTROL (437): 70.00

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
012516 1 Invoice GIS UPDATE 01/25/2016 270.00 01.45.532.01

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 270.00

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
010416 1 Invoice JAIL HILL INN LICENSE 01/04/2016 50.00 01.16.546.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 50.00

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
020116 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 02/01/2016 200.12 01.21.538.00

Page 80 of 83



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 1/26/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 04, 2016  09:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

020116 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 02/01/2016 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9303828554 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 01/19/2016 177.03 20.25.652.02

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 177.03

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 01/31/2016 34.50 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 34.50

LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218)
020316 1 Invoice SAFETY TRAINING 02/03/2016 78.00 01.41.563.00

Total LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218): 78.00

MILLER, JONATHAN (120143)
012216 1 Invoice TRAVEL/TRAINING 01/22/2016 97.18 01.46.563.00
012816 1 Invoice CODE TRAINING 01/28/2016 36.00 01.46.563.00

Total MILLER, JONATHAN (120143): 133.18

NICOR (151)
020116 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 02/01/2016 127.55 01.13.511.06
020116 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 02/01/2016 283.06 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 410.61

NICOR (F) (118924)
020116 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 02/01/2016 134.46 01.13.571.05
020116 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 02/01/2016 72.63 01.41.571.05
020116 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 02/01/2016 24.79 22.22.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 231.88

O'MEARA CUSTOM PRODUCTS, INC. (120211)
29537 1 Invoice RESTROOM UPDATES 01/21/2016 3,004.00 58.54.820.00

Total O'MEARA CUSTOM PRODUCTS, INC. (120211): 3,004.00

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
020116 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 02/01/2016 85.64 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 85.64

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
020216 1 Invoice POSTAGE 02/02/2016 21.72 01.21.551.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 21.72

Page 81 of 83



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 1/26/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 04, 2016  09:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

PF PETTIBONE & CO (395)
34890 1 Invoice PRINTING 01/22/2016 84.05 01.21.554.00

Total PF PETTIBONE & CO (395): 84.05

PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208)
020116 1 Invoice DENTAL INSURANCE 02/01/2016 1,637.35 01.13.451.01

Total PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208): 1,637.35

QUILL CORP. (686)
2389381 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES/POLIC 01/15/2016 28.78 01.21.651.00
2522535 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES/POLIC 01/20/2016 86.87 01.21.651.00

Total QUILL CORP. (686): 115.65

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0443692 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 01/28/2016 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SHEEHAN AUTO ELECT. CORP (268)
221223 1 Invoice 07 STERLING 01/29/2016 134.04 01.41.613.06

Total SHEEHAN AUTO ELECT. CORP (268): 134.04

SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196)
020116 1 Invoice SKID LOADER ANNUAL L 02/01/2016 3,000.00 20.25.832.03
553552 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT TIRE 01/21/2016 51.89 17.52.514.00

Total SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196): 3,051.89

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
104161 1 Invoice FURNACES IN GARAGE 01/18/2016 114.02 01.21.549.00
104164 1 Invoice MAINTENANCE 01/25/2016 2,760.38 58.54.511.00
104165 1 Invoice BUILDING MAINTENANC 01/18/2016 24.00 01.11.549.00
104287 1 Invoice FURNACE REPAIR 01/26/2016 228.04 59.55.511.01

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 3,126.44

US CELLULAR (92)
020116 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 02/01/2016 45.42 01.41.552.00
020116 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 02/01/2016 43.22 01.11.552.00
020116 3 Invoice FIRE DEPT./CELL PHONE 02/01/2016 34.23 22.22.552.00
020116 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 02/01/2016 84.38 01.21.552.01
020116 5 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 02/01/2016 44.00 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 251.25

US POSTAL SERVICE (1076)
020216 1 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 02/02/2016 75.00 13.44.551.00
020216 2 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 02/02/2016 75.00 51.42.551.00
020216 3 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 02/02/2016 75.00 52.43.551.00

Page 82 of 83



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 1/26/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 04, 2016  09:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total US POSTAL SERVICE (1076): 225.00

VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507)
012216 1 Invoice MEMORIAL PLAQUES 01/22/2016 960.00 17.52.820.06

Total VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507): 960.00

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
012716 1 Invoice MAINTENANCE 01/27/2016 323.00 58.54.511.00
012716 2 Invoice MAINTENANCE 01/27/2016 315.00 58.54.511.00
012716 3 Invoice RESTROOM UPDATES 01/27/2016 4,095.00 58.54.820.00
020816 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 02/08/2016 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 4,843.00

WIERSEMA SIGNS, WARREN (120218)
17173 1 Invoice TRUCK SAFETY INSPEC 12/21/2015 120.00 01.41.652.05

Total WIERSEMA SIGNS, WARREN (120218): 120.00

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
13460 1 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 01/24/2016 270.00 01.21.684.00
13460 2 Invoice BODY CAMERAS 01/24/2016 592.50 01.21.563.00

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 862.50

Grand Totals: 50,572.69

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 3601378
Vendor number hash - split: 4205272
Total number of invoices: 71
Total number of transactions: 98

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 50,572.69 50,572.69

Grand Totals: 50,572.69 50,572.69

Page 83 of 83


	00.00 Agenda 02.08.16xx
	01.0045 Sullivan Annexation Agreement
	memo to council 020816
	Sullivan Amendment 1 020816 Revision

	02.0046 Gateway Park Subdivision
	03.0051 Minutes cc012516
	04.0048 Country Fair Agreement
	020816b
	Country Fair  2016

	05.0049 Grant Home Front Event
	06.050 2016 Proposed Pool Rates_Dates
	07.0054 Destination Marketing LOI
	Memo Style LOI
	LOI 2016-02-02 with Exhibits
	LOI 2016-02-02.pdf
	Exhibit A - Steps 2016-02-02.pdf
	Sheet1

	Exhibit B - Terms & Conditions 2016-02-02.pdf


	08.0055 VisitGalena Contract Renewal
	associates '16, city_02.01.16 letter requesting contract renewal
	2014 VisitGalena.org Agreement

	09.0056 Prairie Ridge Permit Fees
	Prairie Ridge Permit Fee Reduction Request Memo 1-29-16
	Prairie Ridge Permit Request

	10.0057 CIP Streets Update
	CIP memo
	CIP Master 2016
	5 Year Street Improvement Program 2016

	11.0058 MABAS Addendum
	MABAS 1
	MABAS

	12.0059 Warrants 02.08.16



